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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of
Saudi Indian Company for Cooperative Insurance
Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Saudi Indian Company for Cooperative Insurance (the “Company).
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the statements of income.
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes from | to 33.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly. in all material respects. the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2018. its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™) as modified by Saudi Arabian Monetary
Authority ("SAMA?™) for the accounting of zakat and tax.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the professional code of conduct and ethics, as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Emphasis of matters

We draw attention to following:

e note 2.2.1 to the accompanying financial statements which describe reasons for preparation of the financial
statements considering the Company as a non-going concern. Accordingly, these financial statements have been
prepared on liquidation basis i.e. assets and liabilities have been stated on expected realizable and settlement
values respectively except for property and equipment and intangibles whose carrving values have been
considered by management as approximating their fair values: and

* note 29 to the accompanying financial statements. which describes that the Company has filed a case for
recovery of SR 2.8 million on account of rent paid and expenditure incurred on renovation of a property and has
recorded this amount in prepayments and other assets. Pending decision from the court. ultimate outcome of the
said case cannot be determined at this stage.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Key audit matter

Key audit matter are those matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For the key audit matter below. a description of how our audit addressed the matter is set out

below:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matter (continued)

Valuation of ultimate claim liabilities arising from insurance contracts

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 December 2018. outstanding claims
including claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)
and other technical reserves amounted to SR 156.4
million (31 December 2017: SR 235 million) as
reported in note 8 to the financial statements.

The estimation of ultimate insurance contract
liabilities involves a significant degree of
judgment. The liabilities are based on the best-
estimate of ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not settled at a given date, whether reported or not,
together with the related claims handling costs.

In particular, estimates of IBNR and the use of
actuarial and statistical projections involve
significant judgment. A range of methods e.g.
Chain ladder method. Bornhuetter-Ferguson
method, expected loss ratio method etc. are used
by the actuary to determine these provisions.
Underlying these methods are a number of explicit
or implicit assumptions relating to the expected
settlement amount and settlement patterns of
claims.

We considered this as a key audit matter since use |
of management assumptions and judgments could |
result in material over / understatement of the |
Company s profitability.

I

Our procedures included the following:

- understanding and evaluating key controls around the
claims handling and provision setting processes of
the Company including completeness and accuracy
of claims data used in the actuarial reserving process:
and

- evaluating the competence. capabilities and
objectivity of the management’s expert by examining
their professional qualifications and experiences and
assessing their independence.

In obtaining sufficient audit evidence to assess the integrity of
data used as inputs into the actuarial valuations, we tested on
sample basis. the completeness and accuracy of underlying
claims data utilized by the Company’s actuary in estimating
the IBNR by comparing it to supporting documents.

To challenge management’s methodologies and assumptions.
we were assisted by an actuary engaged by us as auditor’s
expert to understand and evaluate the Company’s actuarial
practices and the provisions established. In order to gain
comfort over the actuarial report issued by management’s
expert. our actuary performed the following:

- evaluated whether the Company’s actuarial
methodologies were consistent with those used in the
industry and with prior periods, seeking sufficient
justification for significant differences;

- assessed key actuarial assumptions including claims
ratios, and expected frequency and severity of claims.
We challenged these assumptions by comparing them
with our expectations based on the Company’s
historical experience. current trends and our own
industry knowledge: and

- reviewed the appropriateness of the calculation
methods and approach along with the assumptions
used and sensitivities to the key assumptions.

Refer to the significant accounting policies note

4 to the financial statements, which explain the valuation

methodology used by the Company and critical judgments and estimates, refer to note 8 for the disclosures of claims

reserving balances and refer note 26 for insurance risk management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

Other information included in the Company’s 2018 annual report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the Directors) are responsible for the other information in the Company’s
annual report. Other information consists of the information included in the Company’s 2018 annual report, other
than the financial statements and our auditors” report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information. if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the IFRSs as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and tax. the applicable requirements of the Regulations
for Companies and the Company’s Articles of Association / by-laws, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement.
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so (refer note 2.2.1 to the financial statements).

The Company’s Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs. as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material ifl individually or in the aggregate. they
could reasonably be expected to intluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as endorsed in the kingdom of Saudi Arabia. we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal control:

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control:

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (continued)
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

*  conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors™ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors™ report. However. future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 1o continue as a going concern: and

e cvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors™ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Article 135 of the Law of Companies require the auditor to include in his report violations to the Law of Companies
and the companies’ statute. During our audit we noted that the Company violated Article 87 of the Law of
Companies without having material impact on the financial statements. The Company could not hold general
assembly meeting of its shareholders within six months following the end of the fascial year of the Company. which
is a non-compliance of Article 87 of the Law of Companies and consequently could not file copy of the financial
statements, board report and the auditors’ report with the Ministry of Commerce and Investment (MOCI) and the
Capital Market Authority (CMA), as required under article 126 of the Law of Companies.

Associated Accountants

Aldar Autit Bureau Independent Member of Geneva

Abdullah Al Basri & Co Giunp Jaternational
P.O. Box 2195 P. O. Box 60930
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SAUD1 INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

31 December 31 Pecember
Note 2018 2017
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 2,979 120,336
Investments 13 1,923 19,569

Premiums and reinsurance receivables, net 7 53,383 149,222
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums 9 8,310 ' 69,033
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding ¢laims 8 44,958 86,484
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported 8 9,520 41,316
8

Reinsurers’ share of other reserves - 1,343
Deferred policy acquisition costs 10 1,874 14,231
Prepayments and other assets 12 15,243 16,553
Due from related parties 24 2,932 2,636
Statutory deposit 1% 18,300 30,750
Statutory deposit investment return 2,023 1,611
Property and equipment 14 4,336 4,539
Intangible assets 14 1,968 1,879
TOTAL ASSETS 167,749 559,502

The accompanying notes | to 33 form part of these financial statements.
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (confinued)

As at 31 December 2018

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

31 December 31 December
Note 2018 2017

LIABILITIES

Qutstanding claims g 78,758 61,561
Claims incurred but not reported 3 49,277 169,347
Premiurn deficiency reserve 8 16,884 207
Other reserves 8 11,418 4,121
Unearned premiums 9 17,235 176,943
Reinsurance balances payable 16,173 10,172
Unearned reinsurance commission 11 1,598 6,641
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 16 36,278 17,496
Zakat and income tax payabie 19 2,270 3,966
Mathematical reserve for life insurance operations 15 1,437 1,517
End of service benefits 17 1,785 3.849
Statutory deposit investment return payable 2,023 1,611
Due to related parties 24 6,023 11,732
Surplus distribution to policyholder 25 - 6,346
TOTAL LIABILITIES 241,159 475,509
EQUITY

Share capital 20 166,000 122,000
Accurnulated losses (174,575) (37.318)
Fair value reserve for available for sale investments - (1,050
Re-measurement of end of service benefits 17 1,165 361
TOTAL EQUITY ‘ (73,410 83,993
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ' 167,749 559,502

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 29

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these financial statement

Chairman
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thonsand

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

REVENUES Nofte '
Gross premiums written 9 116,160 499,995
Reinsurance premiums ceded
- Local (9,142) (48,404)
- Foreign (33,041) (130,487)
Excess of loss expenses
- Local (4,496) (2,058)
- Foreign (2,624) (18,676)
Net premiums written 60,857 300,370
Change in unearned premiums, net g 98,985 90,486
Net premiums earned 159,842 390,856
Reinsurance commission income 11 15,646 16,844
Other operating income 499 7.677
Net revenues 175,987 415,377
UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Gross claims paid (339,882) {503,380)
Less: Reinsurers’ share of claims paid ' 133,237 161,617
Net claims paid (206,645 {341,763)
Changes in outstanding claims, net (58,724) 16,005
Changes in incurred but not reported claims , net 88,273 {7,441)
Changes in other reserves, net (25,238) 17,853
Net claims incurred {202,334) {315,346)
Policy acquisition costs 10 (24,323) (48,522)
Other underwriting expenses 21 (9,270 {17,137
Total underwriting costs and expenses {235,927 {381,005}
NET UNDERWRITING (1.OSS) / INCOME {59,940) 34,372
OTHERS (EXPENSES)/INCOME
General and administrative expenses 22 (47,859) (59,389)
Provision for doubtful receivables 7.1 (53,543) (14,811
Other income 2,000 4,706
Investment income 2,357 2,448
Realized loss on investments (572) -
Total others (Expenses) / Income (98.017) (67.052)
TOTAL LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO (157.957) (32,680)
THE SHAREHOLDERS BEFORE ZAKAT AND TAX
Loss per share (SR) /—"‘\ 23 (15.7%) {3.27)
The accompapying.potes | to 33 form part of tEése ﬁnar{ci,a] statements, g

-
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

Note

Net loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to the
statement of income-shareholders’ operations

Actuarial gain on Re-measurement of end of service 17
benefits

Changes in fair value of available for sale investments 13

Total comprehensive loss for the year

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
(157,957) (32,680)
- (441)
804 361
(366)
(157,153) (33,126)

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these financial statements.

ChiefExecutwe Off'cer ;L;Chalrman
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

31 December

31 December

Note 2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss for the year (157,957 (32,680}
Adjustments for non-cash items;
Depreciation of property and equipment 14 2,564 905
Amortization of intangibles 14 1,475 485
Provision for doubtful receivables 7.1 53,543 14,817
Realized loss on available for sale investment 972 -
Unrealized loss on investments {1,397) 151
Provision for retirement benefit obligation 17 1,397 1,703

(99,403) (14,619)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Premiums and reinsurance receivables 42,299 {36,655)
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums 60,713 (42,270)
Reinsurers’ shate of outstanding claims 41,526 30,779
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported 31,796 {33,181)
Reinsurets’ share of other reserves © 1,343 (1,343)
Deferred policy acquisition costs 12,357 5,848
Prepayments and other assets 1,310 5,268
Due from related parties (296) -
Outstanding claims 17,197 (46,784}
Claims incurred but not reported (120,070) 40,622
Other reserves 7,297 (13,991)
Premium deficiency reserve 16,677 {2,519
Unearned premiums {159,708} (48,216)
Reinsurance balances payable 6,001 {5,491)
Unearned reinsurance commission (5,044) 3,317
Mathematical provision for life insurance operations (80) -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 18,778 141
Share compensation 24 (5,708) -
Cash (used in) operations (133,005) {159,004}
Zakat and income tax paid _ 19 (2,696) (4,921)
Retirement benefit obligation paid _ 17 {2,656) (438)
Surplus distribution paid (6,346) -
Net cash used in operating activities (144,703) (164,453)

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these financial statements.

3 y e v;”f
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

31 December 31 December
Note 2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of intangibles 14 (1,565) {1,429
Proceeds from disposal of investments 31,570 (12,764)
Purchase of property and equipment 14 (2,359) {2,693)
Net cash generated / (used in) from investing activities 27,646 (16,886)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transaction cost relating to reduction in share capital (300) {155)
Net cash (used in) from financing aciivities (300) (355)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (117,357 (181,694}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 120,336 302,030
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 2,979 120,336
Non-cash supplemental information:

Changes in fair value of available for sale investment -- (366)
Reduction of capital 22,000 83,000

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these financial statements.

icxecutive Officer
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) '

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded to thousand

1. ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Saudi Indian Company for Cooperative Insurance “Wafa Insurance” (the “Company™) is a Saudi joint
stock company as sanctioned by the Royal Decree No. M60 dated 18 Ramadan 1427H corresponding to 9
October 2006 (date of inception). The Company is registered in Riyadh with the Ministry of Commerce
and Industry under commercial registration No.1010236705 dated 24 Rajab 1428H corresponding to 7
August 2007, The Company’s registered office address is Al-Maseef Dist., Northern Ring Road between
exit 5&6, PO Box: 341413, Riyadh 11333, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company announce on tadawul
dated on 14 April 2019 that registered office address is changed and new address is Qortoba, Saeed Bin
Zaid Street, 12721, Riyadh 11333, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The principal activities of the Company are o transact the cooperative insurance operations and all related
activities including reinsurance and agency activities under the law of Supervision of Cooperative
Insurance Companies and its by-laws and other regulations promulgated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
The Company is permitted to conduct its operations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The Company has been granted the license (number TMN/14/20086) to practice all lines of insurance
business on 6 Jumada I, 1429H corresponding to 10 June 2008G from Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority
("SAMA™). The Company commenced its general insurance operations from 20 August 2008 and
protection and savings insurance operations from 11 January 2009. The Company’s license has been
renewed by SAMA for a period of three years effective from 3 March 2017 corresponding to 4 Jumada 11,
1438H.

2. BASIS OF PREPRATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and income tax’, which
requires, adoption of all [FRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™) except
for the application of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12 - “Income Taxes™ and IFRIC 21 -
“Levies™ so far as these relate to zakat and income tax, As per the SAMA Circular no. 381000074519
dated April 11,2017 and subsequent amendments through certain clarifications relating to the accounting
for zakat and income tax (“SAMA Circular™), the zakat and income tax are to be accrued on a quarterly
basis through equity under retained earnings.

Until 2016, the financial statements of the Company were prepared in accordance with “International
Financial Reporting Standards” (IFRSs). This change in framework resulted in change in the presentation
of zakat and income tax. However, this did not impact the financial statements of the Company as the
Company was already following the same presentation.

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.2.1 Going Concern
As at 31 December 2018, the Company has accumulated losses of SR 175.27 million (2017: SR 37.32
mil{ion) as at 31 December 2018, which are 175.27% (2017: 30.59%) of the Company’s share capital as
at that date.

The Company reduced its share capital by SR 83 million during the year 2017 and by SR 22 million during
2018 (refer note 20). Further, the Company did not meet the soivency margin requitements as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 and the Company’s solvency margin as at 31 December 2018
remained declined substantially.

The Company received a final warning from SAMA on 01 May 2018, requiring the Company to maintain
the required solvency margin before 30 September 2018 and to appoint an independent consultant at the
expense of the Company to provide advice on this matter, In case the Company does not take corrective
measures, SAMA will take one or more actions including preventing the Company from accepting
subscribers or investors or new subscribers in any of the insurance activities or reduce it.
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2. BASIS OF PREPRATION (continued)
2.2.1 Going Concern (continued)

The Board of Directors based on a business plan re¢commended the extra ordinary general assembly to
approve the capital reduction of 22 million and capital injection of SR 100 million. On 29 April 2018 the
Company appointed a consultant as a financial advisor to manage the process of reducing the Company's
capital and carrying out alt related procedures, The Company after receiving approva!l from SAMA and
CMA, called for a general assembly meeting and the reduction of capital of SR 22 million was approved
by the general assembly on 05 June 2018.

On 24 May 2018, SAMA issued a letter regarding the Company's failure to meet the minimum solvency
margin requirements and suspended the Company from issuing new policies and renewing current policies
from 24 May 2018, and directed the Company to appoint a consultant which shall submit weekly report to
SAMA. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall inform all the board members of the receipt of this

letter and that they shall take appropriate actions to address the solvency. SAMA may take more actions
if the solvency position is not addressed.

The Company prepared a business plan internally to address accumulated losses and solvency margin
issues.

On 06 June 2018, the Company appeinted an actuarial firm to prepare a business plan, which was approved
by the Board of Directors on 46 August 2018 and the same was submitted to SAMA on 16 September
2018. This revised business plan contained different scenarios and addressed the need of capital injection
of SR 220 miilion to deal with the solvency situation and ensure going concern status of the Company.

On 31 May 2018, the Company with the approval of SAMA appointed a consuitant to study and analyze
the solvency situation of the Company. The consultant's report was submitted by the end of July 2018, in
which the consultant recommended short term, medium term and long-term actions. These
recommendations inciuded a minimum capital injection of SR 150 million, fixing the violations as
mentioned in SAMA letters and improvement of operations.

On 29 July 2018, the Company announced that its accumulated losses have exceeded 50% of the share
capital of the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company were informed of this significant event
on 28 July 2018. The Company wishes to show its shareholders that according to Article 150 of the
Companies Law, the Board of Directors of the Company shall, by 12 August 2018, call an Extraordinary
General Assembly, (the Extraordinary General Assembly must be called no later than 11 September 2018),
to decide either to increase or decrease the share capital of the Company 1o the extent that the ratio of the
losses becomes less than haif of the capital or to dissolve the Company. The general assembly will be
called within 45 days of the notification to the chairman of the Board of Directors and the decision of the
general assembly of the shareholder must be implemented within 90 days of the general assembly meeting,
Faifure to implement the decision of general assembly within 90 days as aforesaid wili lead to dissolution
of the Company as mentioned in article 150 of the Law of Companies.

Furthermore, SAMA issued a letter on 29 July 2018 on various conirols and governance related matters,
requiring the Cempany to appeint a consultant within 15 days and to submit a report within 60 days from
the date of this letter. The Company has appointed a consultant and received no objection from SAMA on
23 October 2018.The report has not been finalized as yet.

On 07 August 2018, the Company announced that the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 06
August 2018, recommended to call for an extra ordinary general assembly in accordance with article 150
of the Law of Companies to study the sitvation of the Company and take a decision 1o increase capital or
reduce capital or dissolve the Company. The Board of Directors also clarified that this assembly is only
for the purpose of taking decision on the strategy of dealing with the current situation of the Company and
choosing one of the options referred to in article 150 of law of Companies.
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Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting was held on 10 September 2018 in which shareholders approved
the direction of the Company to proceed with procedures to increase the share capital and obtain the
approval of the competent authorities,

BASIS OF PREPRATION (continued)
2.2.1 Going Concern (continued))

Board of Directors of the Company on 03/01/1440H corresponding to 13 September 2018 decided to

recommend to the Extraordinary General Assembly to increase the capital of the Company through a right
issue of SR 220 miliion.

The Company received letter 1509/89 from SAMA on 07/01/1440 corresponding to 18 September 2018
for no-objection to increase the Company's capital from SR 100 million to SR 320 million through a right
issue provided that the Company meets all requirements of other official authorities.

The Company is in process to find an underwriter for capital injection therefore Company didn’t submit
the request to Capital Market Authority (CMA) for approval of capital injunction.

The Company's management met SAMA on 11 October 2018 to check the status of the Company and to
discuss solutions available to save/ rescue the Company in light of the current losses.

The Company announced on Tadawul on 26/02/1440 H corresponding to 04 November 2018, that it would
like to inform its shareholders that the Board of Directors reviewed developments on capital increase, and
discussed intensively the challenges and difficulties faced by the Company in appointment of underwriter
to cover the required amount of capital increase. The Board feels that they are entrusted to do what is
possibie to protect shareholders and stakeholders of the Company, and they are aware of the current stage
and the time remaining and available under the law. However, it is not possibie to obtain the underwriter
to date to cover the capital increase. This entails a clear risk that the Company will be dissolved in
accordance with Article 150 of the Law of Companies if the capital is not increased within the statutory
period. Accordingly, in order to protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company, the Board of
Directors has only an option to reduce the capital to ensure the Company's continuation. The reduction of
capital of insurance companies to less than SR 100,000,000 is not possible under the Insurance Companies
Control Law and its Executive Regulations. As stated by the SAMA in its explanatory statement issued on
13 August 2018, the Board recommends to change the activities of the Company, and reduce the capital
after obtaining necessary regulatory approvals. The Company is not prevented from completing capital
increase procedures if the arrangements with the underwriter are done on a timely basis, a possibility that
the Board of Directors is unlikely to achieve under the current circumstances.

On 28/02/1440H cotrespending to 06 November 2018, the Company received a letter reference 89/12886
from SAMA referring to the Company's announcement on the website of Tadawul dated 04 November
2018 containing the recommendation of the Board of directors to change the Company's activities and with
reference to article 75 of the Implementing Regulations of Cooperative Insurance Companies Control
System which contains procedures related to cessation of insurance activities. SAMA informed the
Company's Board of directors to comply with all statutory requirements and, if the Company met those
statutory requirements as per the recommendation fo cease the activities of the Company as described in

the announcement of the Company referred to above, it must provide SAMA with statutory requirements
contained in the said Article 75,

In response to SAMA's aforesaid letter, the Company informed SAMA on 29/02/1440H corresponding to
07 November 2018 that during the meeting with SAMA on 11 October 2018 they discussed the difficulty
in having the underwriting arrangement in place for increase in capital, Further, because of the Company’s
current conditions, making it difficult for the Company to proceed with this option, the idea of cancelling
the insurance license of the Company and change of its activities was discussed, if the Company is unable
to appoint an underwriter. As it was not possible to appoint an underwriter to date due to suspension of
business, ban on writing business and the time remaining before the Company is subjecied to the Article
150 of the Law of Companies, the Board of Directors, to ensure continuation of the Company and
protection of the Shareholders’ equity and policyholders, have no other option but to reduce capital, which
requires changing the Company's activities.
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2. BASIS OF PREPRATION (continued)
2.2.1 Geing Concern { (continued}

Therefore, the Company requested SAMA to cancel the insurance license of the Company and to instruct
the Ministry of Commerce and Investment (MOCI) and the Capital Market Authority (CMA) to complete
the procedures for cessation of the insurance activities, and advising the Company to take the approval of
the Extraordinary General Assembly, so that the Company can cease the operations and amend its
activities. The Company will be deemed dissolved under article 150 of the Law of Companies on 09
December 2018. We hope to approve the change of the Company's activity immediately with cur readiness
t0o make the necessary comrritments to complete the procedures of cancelling the insurance license
according to the statutory requirement and within the periods prescribed in the executive reguiation of the
Insurance Companies Condrol Law.

Further to the above stated announcements, the Company announced on Tadawul on 02 December 2018
that it would like to inform its shareholders that the Board of Directors reviewed on 21/03/1440H
corresponding to 29 November 2018 developments regarding the increase of capital and discussed
infensively the efforts made to date, including the progress of negotiations with the underwriters and
addressing the concermed parties on the change of activity. The Board is aware that it is only less than ten
days to the end of statutory period prescribed under Article 150 of the Law of Companies (ninety days
from the date of the General Assembly voted on capital increase), which is not sufficient to complete the
statutory requirements for implementation of any of the two options referred to. Accordingly, since serious
endeavors are still ongeing and based on what the Company's legal counsel has presented to, and the
protection of the rights of sharehoiders and stakeholders, is to restrict the request for financial
reorganization under Chapter IV with the Bankruptcy System in order to free the Company from the period
in the law of companies until the completion of necessary procedures to increase the capital of the
Company or change the activity and reduce the capital under Article 45 of the Bankruptcy Law and Article
42 of its executive regulations. The Board of Directors wishes to clarify that the financial reorganization
procedure, although included in the bankruptey system, is not considered a decision to liquidate the
Company or to enter inte bankruptcy. This is one of the new instruments approved by the regulator to
protect troubled companies from liquidation and bankruptcy. The financial reorganization of the Company
to increase its capital or reduce it after the change of activity and will be under the supervision of the Court.
The procedure is subject to the approval of the regulators and stakeholders in all cases.

The Company has announced on Tadawul on 28/03/1440 corresponding to 6 December 2018 that it has
successfully registered the application for the Company’s financial reorganization, in accordance with
Article 45 of the Bankruptcy Law and Article 42 of its Executive Regulations. Consequently, the Company
shall be deemed to be exempted from the statutory period stipulated in Article 150 of Law of Companies.

The Company has announced on Tadawul on 19/4/1440 corresponding to 26 December 2018 that the
request for financial reorganizatiosn has been sent to 9th Commetcial Department at the Comimercial
Court in Riyadh. The application was accepted by the court on February 13, 2019 (08/06/1440). As per
the order of the court, Company should hold ali payments under article 46 of Bankruptcy taw except the
operational expenses of the Company from the date of submission request (12/04/1440 corresponding 21
December 2018) and appoint the trustee to ensure the submission of financial reorganization proposal
within 150 days. In respect of court erder the trustee took charge on March 5, 2019. On July 10, 2019
(corresponding to (7/11/1440H), the Company submitted financial reorganization proposal. The session
was held on 02/01/1441 corresponding to September 1, 2019 at Commercial Court in Riyadh, the Ninth
Dept, [n which the Court reviewed the reorganization proposal and gave judgment that the Company
shouid submit the reorganization proposal which includes the plan that will be followed to return into
practice and confinue its activity, and granted the Company an additional time of 150 days from
8/11/1440 corresponding July 10,2019,

The accumulated losses, deficiency in solvency margin, which led to final warning letter from SAMA and
consequential suspension of business of the Company by SAMA, significant decrease in human resource,
pending appointment of financial advisor and underwriter, the Company's intention to further reduce
capital, the Company's request to SAMA to cancel ifs insurance license and cessation of insurance
activities, registration of the Company's application for financial reorganization under Chapter IV of
Bankruptey Law, pending decision of the court on financial reorganization proposal submitted on July 10,

L&
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2. BASIS OF PREPRATION (continued)
2.2.1 Going Concern { (continued)

2019 (07/11/1440) and the Court’s judgement dated September 1, 2019, as aforesaid, have created a
material uncertainty and cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as going concern and
therefore, the Company may not be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

Under the going concern assumption it is assumed that the eniity will continue in operation for the
foreseeable future and has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of
its operations. However, due to the facts and circumstances mentioned in note 2.2.1, going concern
assumption has not been followed while preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018. Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared under the (liquidation basis) of accounting
i.e. assets and liabilities have been recorded on expected realizable and settlement values respectively
except for property and equipment and intangibles whose carrying values have been considered by
management as approximating their fair values following [FRSs as modified by SAMA for the accounting
of zakat and income tax.

2.2.2 Basis of presentation

As required by the Saudi Arabian insurance regulations, the Company maintains separate books of
accounts for Insurance Operations and Shareholders’ Operations. Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
clearly attributable to either activity are recorded in the respective accounts. The basis of allocation of
expenses from joint operations is determined and approved by the management and the Board of Directors.
Losses incurred by Insurance Operations are absorbed by Shareholders® Operations. Net surplus shall be
distributed at the rate of 10% at the end of each year to the policyholders. The remaining 90% of the net
surplus shall be transferred to the shareholder’s income statement.

The statement of financial position, statements of income, comprehensive income and cash flows of the
insurance operations and shareholders operations which are presented in note 31 of the financial statements
have been provided as supplementary financial information to comply with the requirements of the
guidelines issued by SAMA implementing regulations and is not required by IFRS. SAMA implementing
regulations requires the clear segregation of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the insurance
operations and the shareholders operations. Accordingly, the statements of financial position, statements
of income, comprehensive income and cash flows prepared for the insurance operations and shareholders
operations as referred to above, reflect only the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and comprehensive
gains or losses of the respective operations,

2.2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals (SR), which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company. All financial information presented in SR has been rounded off to
the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

2.2.4 Fiscal vear
The Company follows a fiscal year ending 31 December,
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNALTIONAL FINANCIALS AND
REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)

3.1 New standards and amendments to existing standards

The accounting policies, estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements
are consistent with those used in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017 except for the adoption of the following new standards and other amendments 1o
existing standards mentioned below which have had no significant financial impact on the financial
statements of the Company on the current period or prior period and are expected to have no significant
effect in future periods. Certain figures for the prior period / year have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation made in the current period:

3.1.1 IFRS 2 Share-based payment
Amendments to IFRS 2 — “Share-based Payment”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1 January
2018. The amendments cover classification and measurement of three accounting areas, first, measurement
of cash-settled share-based payments, second, ciassification of share-based payments settled net of tax
withholdings, and third, accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to
equity-settled. The impact is not material for the Company,

3.1.2 IFRS I5 Revenue from contracés with customers
IFRS 15 — “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ applicable from 1 January 2018 presents a five-step
model to determine when to recognize revenue, and at what amount, The application of this standard coutd
have a significant impact on how and when revenue is recognized (except for coniracts that are within the
scope of the Standards on leases, insurance contracts and financial instruments), with new estimates and
judgments, and the possibility of revenue recognition being accelerated or deferred. The management
believes that adoption of IFRS 15 has no material impact on the Company’s firancial statements.

3.2 Standards issued but not yet effective

The Company has chesen not to early adopt the amendments and revisions to the Internationa! Financial
Reporting Standards, which have been published and are mandatory for compliance for the Company with
effect from future dates.

3.2.1 IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (including amendments to IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts)

The implementation of IFRS 9 is expected to result in a significant portion of financial assets currently
classified as available-for-sale being re-classified as at fair value through profit or loss or fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI). Credit allowances for financial assets carried at amortized cost and
debt securities measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in OCI, are expected to
increase due to the introduction of the expected credit loss methodology. The Company will avail
exemptions available to insurers and is considering deferring the implementation of IFRS 9 until a later
date, but nio later than January 1, 2021. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 on the Company’s financial
statements will, to a large extent, have to take into account the interaction with the IFRS 17 “Insurance
contracts”. At present the Company has not fully assessed the effect of adoption of I[FRS 9.

3.2.2 TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance contracts’ was published on May 18, 2017 with the effective date of January 1, 2021.
IFRS 17 provides comprehensive guidance on accounting for insurance contracts and investment coniracts
with discretionary participation features. For non-fife and short-term life insurance contracts IFRS 17
introduces mandatory discounting of loss reserves as well as a risk adjustment for non-financial risk, for
which confidence level equivalent disclosure will be required. Further, IFRS 17 will change the
presentation of insurance contract revenue, as gross written premiuvm will no longer be presented in profit
or loss. At the date of publication of this financial statments, the Company has not quantified the potential
impact on the financtal statements.

3.2.3 IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 - “Leases”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2419, The new standard
eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees under IAS 17, which distinguishes between on-
balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating leases. Instead, [FRS 16 proposes on-balance
sheet accounting model.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING, ESTIMATES AND JUDEJMENTS

4.1 Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately
may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

a) Ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

It is the Company’s most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need fo
be congidered in the estimate of the liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such claims. The
provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is an estimation of claims which are expected to be
reported subsequent to the statement of financial position date, for which the insured event has occurred prior
to the statement of financial position date. The primary technique adopted by the management in estimating
the cost of notified and IBNR claims, is that of using the past claims settlement trends to predict future claims
settlement trends.

Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually. Independent loss adjusters normally
estimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions for claims incurred, and claims incurred but not
reported, on a quarterly basis. The Company also uses the services of an independent actuary for the valuation
of IBNR as well as premium deficiency reserves.

b) Impairment in available-for-sale equit_y

The Company determines that available-for-sale equity financial assets are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or
prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Company evaluates among other factors, the
normal volatility in share price, the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes
in technology, and operational and financing cash flows. Impairment may be appropriate when there is
evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, indusiry and sector performance, changes in
technology, and financing and operational cash flows.

¢) Impairment in insurance receivables

The Company assesses receivables that are individually significant and receivables included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics for impairment. Receivables that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment. This assessment of impairment requires judgment. In making this
Jjudgment, the Company evaluates credit risk characteristics that consider past-due status and other loss event
factors being indicative of the ability to pay all amounts due as per contractual terms.

d) Fair value of financial instruments that are aot quoted in an active market

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are detetmined by using valuation
techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values, they are
validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area that created them. All
models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent
practical, models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING, ESTIMATES AND JUDEJMENTS (continued)
4.1 Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements (continued)

¢) Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of equipment and fixture
The Company’s management determines the estimated useful lives of equipment and fixture for

calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset or
physical wear and tear.

Management reviews the useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of equipment and fixture
annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted where the management believes the usefu! lives,
residual values and depreciation method differ from previous estimates.

f) Provision for zakat

In making estimate for the current zakat payable by the Company, the management considers the
applicable laws and the decisions/judgements of zakat and fax authorities on certain issues in the past.

g) Provisions for employees’ end of service benefits

The liabilities relating to defined benefit plans are determined through actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. The method involves making assumptions abous discount rates, future
salary increases, mortality rates and future increase in medical costs. Due to the long-term nature of these
benefits, such estimates are subject to certain uncertainties. Significant assumptions used to carry out the
actuarial vaiuation have been disclosed in note 17 of these financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with banks
including call and time deposits with less than three months® maturity from the date of acquisition.

5.2 Receivable from policyholders, net

Accounts receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments. These are
recognized initially at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial
recognition, receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognized in the statement of insurance operations. An allowance for impairment

of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the carrying amount will not be
recoverable.

5.3 Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other costs directly related to the acquisition and renewal of insurance contracts are
deferred and amortized on a basis consistent with the term of the related policy coverage except for marine
cargo which is fully deferred for policies initiating during the last three months of the year. Al other

acquisition costs are recognized as an expense when incurred, Amortization is recorded in the statement
of income,

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period and are treated as a change
in accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of
impairment arises. If the assumptions relating to future profitability of these policies are not realized, the
amortization of these costs could be accelerated, and this may also require additional impairment write-
offs in the statement of insurance operations. Deferred policy acquisition costs are also considered in the
liability adequacy test for each reporting period.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES{continued)
5.4 Property and equipment and intangibles

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. These
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives which are summarized as follows:

Years
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipment and other assets 4
Computer hardware 4
Computer Software 4
Motor vehicles 4

Expenditure on maintenance and repairs are expensed, while expenditure for betterment are capitalized.
Assets costing less than SAR 3,000/- are depreciated at the rate of 100% in the year of acquisition. An
item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when ne future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de recognition of the asset {calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of income - insurance operations when the asset is derecognized. The residual values, useful
lives and methods of depreciation of property and equipment are reviewed annually and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate, The carrying values of these assets are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down
to their recoverable amount,

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount might not be recoverable. An impairment loss, if any, is recognized for
the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher
of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Gains and fosses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are included in the statement of income under other general and administrative expenses.

Acquired computer software’s have finite life and are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the same. These costs are amortized on the basis of the software’s expected useful
life.

5.5 Investments

All investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given, including
acquisition charges associated with the investment except in case of investments held at fair value through
income statement (FVIS). For investments that are traded in organized financial markets, fair value is
determined by reference to exchange quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting
date without any deduction for transaction costs.

a) Investments held at Fair Value through Income statement (FVIS)

Investments in this category include these investments held for trading or those designated as FVIS on
initial recognition. Investments classified in this category are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in short term and are recorded at fair value.

After initial recognition, investments held at FVIS are measured at fair value, Subsequent changes in fair
value are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it arises.

Special commission income and dividend income received on financial assets held as FVIS are reflected
as income from FVIS financial instruments in the statement of comprehensive income - insurance
operations/ shareholders operations in line with the underlying assets.
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S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.6 Investments (continued)

b) Available for sale investments (AFS)

Investments which are classified as AFS are subsequently measured at fair value. Available for sale
investments are those investments that are neither held-to-maturity nor held for trading. For an available
for sale investment where the fair value has not been hedged, any unrealized gain or loss arising from a

change in its fair value is recognized directly in the statement of comprehensive income until the
investment is derecognized.

¢} Held to maturity investments (HTM)
Held to maturity investments are initially recorded at cost, being fair value of consideration given.
Subsequently these are measured at amortized cost (using effective interest rate) less impairment losses.

d) Trade date accounting

Allregular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized / derecognized on the trade date (i.e.
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are transactions that require settlement of assets within the time frame generally established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

5.7 Classification of financial instruments

The Company at initial recognition determines the relevant classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities based on its judgment.

5.8 Impairment of reinsurance and other financial assets

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
specific financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists, an impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of income,

Impairment is determined as foliows:

For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognized in the statement of income.

For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying value and the present vatue of
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset;

5.9 Impairment of other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite usefusl life — for example, land ~ are not subject to depreciation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

5.16 Zakat and faxes

In accordance with the regulations of the General Authority for Zakat and Tax ("GAZT"), the Company is
subject to zakat attributable to the Saudi shareholders and to income tax attributable to the foreign
shareholders. Provision for zakat and income tax is charged to the statement of changes in shareholders’

equity. Additional amounis payable, if any, at the finalization of final assessments are accounted for when
such amounts are determined.

Zakat is computed on the Saudi shareholders' share of equity and/ or net income using the basis defined
under the regulations of GAZT. Income tax is compuied on the foreign shareholders' share of net income
for the year. Zakat and income tax are charged fo retained earnings as these are liabilities of the
shareholders. Zakat and income tax are charged in full to the retained earnings.

N
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other provisions

A provision for incurred liabilities is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized
for future operating losses.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and in compliance with Article 70(2g) of the
Implementing Regulations for Cooperative Insurance of SAMA, the Company allocates 20% of the net
income each year to the legal reserve until it has built up a reserve equal to the paid-up capital. Since the
Company has accumulated losses, no such provision for legal reserve has been made in current year.

Recoggition of premium and reinsurance commission revenue

Gross premiums and commissions are recognized with the commencement of the insurance risks
proportionally over the period of coverage. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission. The
portion of premium and commission that will be earned in the future is reported as unearned premium and
commission, respectively, and is deferred on a basis consistent with the term of the related policy coverage
except for marine cargo which is fully deferred for policies initiating during the last three months of the
year.

Investment income

Investment income is recognized on an effective yield basis taking account of the principal outstanding
and the commission rate applicable. Income from investments is principaily earned from term deposits.

Commission income from short-term deposits are recognized on atime proportion basis using the effective
interest rate method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for a portion of its businesses.
Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Recoverable amounts are
estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims pravision or settled claims associated with
reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the reinsurance contract.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of
tmpairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that the
Company may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when the impact on
the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer can be measured reliably. The impairment
loss is recorded in statement of income - insurance operations. Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not
relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.

[
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Reinsurance {continued)

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payabie are estimated
in a manner consistent with the associated reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets or liabilities are

derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to
another patty.

The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for insurance contracts where
applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as revenue or expenses in the
same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the
product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to

reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance
confract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or
when the contract is transferred to another party.

Qutstanding claims

QOutstanding claims comprise the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the date of statement
of financial position together with refated claims handling costs and a reduction for the expected value of
salvage and other recoveries, whether reported by the insured or not. Provisions for reported claims not
paid as of the date of statement of financial position are made on the basis of individual case estimates. [n
addition, a provision based on management’s judgment and the Company’s prior experience is maintained
for the cost of settling claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) including related claims handling costs and
the expected value of salvage and other recoveries at the statement of financial position date. The IBNR is
calculated based on the recommendation of an independent actuary.

Any difference between the provisions at the date of the statement of financial position and settlements
and provisions in the following year is included in the statement of insurance operations for that year. The
outstanding claims are shown on a gross basis and the related share of reinsurance is shown separately.

Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position date, the Company assesses whether its recognized insurance
liabilities are adequate using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. [f that
assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities (less related deferred policy
acquisition costs) is inadequate in the light of estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency is
immediately recognized in the statement of insurance operations and an unexpired risk provision is created.
The Company estimates these reserves based on an independent actuarial valuation.

Employees’ end of service benefits

Employees’ end of service benefits is accrued currently and are payable as a lump sum to all employees
under the terms and conditions of Saudi Labor and Workmen Law on termination of their employment
contracts. End of service payments are based on employees’ final salaries and allowances and their
cumulative years of service, as defined by the conditions stated in the laws of Saudi Arabia. An
independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method, carried out the valuation as at 31 December
2018. All past service cost are recognized as an expense immediately in statement of insurance operations.
All actuarial gains or losses on defined benefit obligation are recognized in ofher comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short term Benefit
Short-term employee benefits, include leave pay and airfare, are current liabilities inciuded in accrued

expenses, measured at the undiscounted amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement,

Define contribution plan
The Company pays retirement contributions for its Saudi Arabian employees to the General Organization

for Social Insurance. This represents a defined contribution plan. The payments made are expensed as
incurred.

Financia} Instruments

Recognition, initial measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instriument and are measured initially at fair value plus transactions

costs, except for those carried at fair value through statement of income which are measured initially at
fair value.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights fo the cash flows from the financial asset

expire, or when the financiai asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished discharged, cancelled or expired.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured subsequently as described below,

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories
upon initial recognition:

, loans and receivables

s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
. held-to-maturity (HTM) investments

. available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.

The Company’s financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents loans, receivables and investments.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
statement of income and other comprehensive income or other financia!l liabilities, as appropriate, The
Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. The Company’s financial liabilities include accounts
payables and other payables, due to related parties. The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as financial liabilities at fair value through statement of income and other
comprehensive income or “other financial liabilities”,

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reperted in the statement of financial position
only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or o realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense
is not offset in the statement of income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or
interpretation.

Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are charged fo the statements of income - insurance operations on
a straight-line basis according to the terms of the rental contracts. There were no significant rental
commitments at December 31, 2018,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign carrency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Saudi Riyals at rates prevailing on the
dafes of such transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Saudi Riyals at rates prevailing on the statement of financial position date. Al} differences are taken
to the statements of income. Foreign exchange differences are not significant and have not been disclosed
separately,

Surplus from insurance operations

In accordance with the requirements of the implementing regulations issued by SAMA, 90% of the net
surpius from insurance operations is transferred to the statement of shareholders® operations, while 10%
of the net surplus is distributed fo policyholders. However, in the case of loss, SAMA has directed the
Company to transter the whole amount to the statement of shareholders’ operations.

Segmental information

A segment is a distinguishable compenent of the Company that is engaged in providing products or
services (a business segment), which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those of other
segments. For management purposes, the Company is organized into business units based on their producis
and services and has four reportable segments as follows:

s Motor
» NMedical
¢«  Others

o Shareholders’ segment - reporting shareholder operations of the Company. Income earned from
investments is the only revenue generating activity. Certain direct operating expenses and other
overhead expenses are allocated to this segment on an appropriate basis. The surplus or loss from the
insurance operations is allocated to this segment on an appropriate basis.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segmenits, has been identified as the chief executive officer
that makes strategic decisions. No inter-segment fransactions occurred during the year.

Insurance Contract

The Company issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those
contracts where the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. As a
general guideline, the Company defines significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay
benefits on the occurrence of an insured event,

5.27 Revenue recognition

Premiums and commissions are taken into income over the terms of the policies to which they relate ona
pro-rata basis. Retained premiums and commission income, which relate to unexpired risks beyond the
end of the financial period, are reported as unearned and deferred based on the following methods:

+  Last three months premium at a reporting date is considered as unearned in respect of marine cargo;

*  Pre-defined calculation for engineering class of business for risks undertaken that extend beyond a
single year. In accordance with this calculation, lower premiums are earned in the first year which
gradually increase towards the end of the tenure of the policy; and

»  Actual number of days for other lines of business.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

Unearned premiums-and commissions represent the portion of premiums and commissions relating to the
unexpired period of coverage. The change in the provision for unearned premium and unearned
commission is taken to the statement of income in the same order that revenue is recognised over the period
of risk.

5.28 Unearned commission income

Commission receivable on cufwards reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortised over the terms of
the insurance contracts to which they relate. Amortisation is recorded on the same basis as premium in the
statement of income.

5.29 Insurance and invesiment contracts

The Company issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those
contracts where the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. As a
general guideline, the Company defines significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay
benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the
insured event did not occur,

Investment contracis are those contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk. The Company’s
unit linked products have been classified as investment contracts. These represent portfolios maintained to
meet the specific investment objectives of policyholders who bear the credit, market and liquidity risks
related to the investments.

The Company’s insurance and investment contracts do not contain any discretionary participatory features,
5.30 Salvage and subrogation reimbursement

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) assets acquired in settling a claim
{for example, salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some
or all costs {for example, subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding claims
liabifity. The allowance is the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of property.

Subrogation reimbursements are alse considered as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding
claims liability. The allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered from the action
against the liable third party.

fad
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balance in current account {s)
Term deposit at banks
Total

Balance in current account {s)
Term deposit at banks 6./
Total

31 December 2018

Insurance Shareholders’

Operations Operation Toul
1,487 1,492 2,979
1,487 1,492 2,979
31 December 2017
Insurance Shareholder’ T
. . otal
Operations Operation
36,069 14,267 50336
-- 70,000 70,000
36,069 84,267 120,336

6 .1 This represents investment in Murabaha term deposit having an original maturity of not more than three
months from the date of acquisition and eamed special commission income at a rate of interest ranging

between 1% to 3.4% per annum. (2017:1% t03.4%)

7. PREMIUMS AND REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES

7.1

Policyholders
Related party (note 23 )
Reinsurance receivables

Gross Receivables

Less: Provisioa for doubtful debts (rote 7.1)
Net receivables '

The movement in the provision for doubtful debts of premium receivables

Opening balance
Charge of provision during the year
Closing balance

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
76,513 151,962
2,932 2,636
68,800 35,647
148,245 190,245
(91,930) (38,387)
56,315 151,858

is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
38,387 23,570
53,543 14,817
91,930 38,387
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7. PREMIUMS AND REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at December 31, the ageing of receivable from policyholders and reinsurer which includes due from

related party is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Neither past due 91 to 180 181 to 365 More than 365

Total nor impaired days days days
2018 SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR
Palicyholders’ 11,539 - - - 11,539
Reinsurers 44,776 13,502 10,333 14,861 6,149
2017
Policyholders’ 114,524 86,918 22,569 5,037 -
Reinsurers 37,334 32,999 4,019 316 -

The Company classifies balances as “past due and impaired™ on case by case basis and an impairment
pany p p Y p

adjustment is recorded in the statement of insurance operations.

Corporate premium receivables are with counterparties with a sound credit profile. The five largest
customers accounts for 15% (31 December 2017: 16%) of the premiums receivable as at 31 December

2018.

8. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS INCLUDING RESERVES
31 December

31 December

2048 2017
Gross outstanding claims and reserves:
Gross outstanding claims £0,840 102,075
Less: Realizable value of salvage and subrogation 2,082 40,514
: 78,758 61,561
Claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 49,277 169,347
Premium deficiency reserve 16,884 207
Other reserve 11,418 2,121
Total 156,337 235,236
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims and
reserves:
Outstanding claims 44,958 86,484
Claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 9,520 41316
Premium deficiency, catastrophe and other reserve -- 1,343
Total
54,478 129,143
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OUTSTANDING CLAIMS INCLUDING RESERVES (continued)

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Net outstanding claims and reserves:
Qutstanding claims 33,800 (24,923}
Claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 39,757 128,032
Premium deficiency, catastrophe and other reserve 28,302 2,984
101,859 106,093

Claims development table

The following reflects the cumulative gross claims, including both claims notified and incurred but not reported
for each successive accident year at each financial position date, together with the cumulative payments to
date. The development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company's ability to estimate the
ultimate value of the claims.

The Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against
adverse future claims experience and developments. As claims develop and the ultimate cost of claims becomes
more certain, adverse claims experiences will be eliminated which results in the release of reserves from earlier
accident years. In order to maintain adequate reserves, the Company will transfer much of this release to the
current accident year reserves when the development of claims is less mature and there is much greater
uncertainty attached to the ultimate cost of claims.

Claims triangulation analysis is by accident years spanning a number of financial years.
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SAUDI INDIAN COMPANY FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE “WAFA INSURANCE”

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals rounded te thousand

9. MOVEMENT IN UNEARNED PREMIUM

31 December 2018

Balance at the beginning of the year
Premiums written during the year
Premiums earned during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year
Premiums written during the year
Premiums earned during the year

Batance at the end of the year

Gross Reinsurers® Net
share
176,943 (69,033) 107,910
110,160 (42,183) 68,977
{269,868) 102,906 (167,962)
17,235 (8,310) 8,925
31 Pecember 2017

Gross Reinsurers’ share Net
225,159 (26,763) 198,396
499 995 {178,891) 321,104
(548,211) 136,621 {411,590)
176,943 (69,033) 107,910

1¢. DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

Balance at beginning of the year

Policy acquisition costs incurred during the year
Policy acquisition costs amortized for the year
Balance at the end of the year

t1. UNEARNED COMMISSION INCOME

Balance at the beginning of the year
Re-insurance commission income received during the year
Re-insurance commission income earned during the year

Balance at the end of the year

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

14,231 20,079
11,966 42,674
(24,323) (48,522)
1,874 14,231

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

6,641 3,325
10,603 20,160
(15,646) (16,844)
1,598 6,641
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. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

Prepaid expenses comprised the following:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
Prepaid rent 3,465 2,418
Prepaid regulatory and other fees 325 309
Prepaid medical insurance 258 342
Prepaid TPA fee & others 2,863 3,59
Accrued manafeth income 1,292 3,751
Receivables from Globe Med 6,668 5,389
Advance to employees 65 376
Others 307 372
15,243 16,553
13. INVESTMENTS
31 December 2018
Insurance Shareholders
Available for sale (Domestic) aperations operations
Unquoted securities 1,923 -—
Shariah compliant funds-quoted -- -
Investment in real estate fund -- --
1,923 --
31 December 2017
Insurance Shareholders
Available for sale - Operations
Unquoted securities 1,923 -
Shariah compliant funds-quoted - 3,950
Investment in real estate fund 13,656 --
15,619 3,950
2018 2017
Opreation  shareholder  Total Opreation  shareholder Total
Opening balance 15,619 3,950 15,619 4,391 20,010
19,569
Purchase during th eyear . - - - - -
Disposal during the year (13,096) (3,950) - (441)
(17,646} (441)
Ending Balance 1,923 - 15,619 3,950 19,569
1,923

Unquoted securities represents investment in shares of Najm for insurance services amounting to SAR 1,923

{December 2017: SAR 1,923},
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14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLES —~ NET

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
Owned assets — property and equipment, net 4,336 4,539
Owned assets — intangible, net 1,968 1,879
6,304 6418
[ntangible
Property and equipment assels
2018
Office
Furniture equipment
Computer and Motor & other
Hardware fixtures vehicles assets Total Software Total
Cost:
At 1 January 2018 4,573 2,720 355 1,399 9,047 9,488 18,535
Additions 661 1,609 - 89 2,359 1,565 3,924
Disposals - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2018 5,234 4,329 355 1,483 11,406 11,053 22,459
Accumutated
depreciation and
amortization:
At | January 2018 2491 1,034 283 698 4,506 1,610 12,116
Charge for the year 870 1,414 21 259 2,564 1,475 4,039
Disposal - - - - - - -
At 3t December 20118 3,361 2,438 304 957 7,070 9,085 16,155
Net book value
31 December 2018 1,873 1,881 51 531 4,336 1,968 6,304
Intangible
Property and equipment assets
2017
Office
equipment
Computer Furniture Motor & other
Hardware  and fixtures  vehicles assets Total Sofiware Total
Cost:
At 1 January 2017 3,149 1,996 273 936 6,354 8,059 14,414
Additions 1,424 724 82 463 2,693 1,429 4,121
Disposals - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2017 4,573 2,720 355 1,399 9,047 9,488 18,535
Accumulated
depreciation and
amottization:
At 1 January 2017 1,993 852 273 485 3,602 7,124 10,727
Charge for the year 498 183 10 214 905 485 1,390
Dispasal - - -- - -- -- --
At 3] December 2017 2,491 1,034 283 698 4,507 7,610 12,117
Net book value
31 December 2017 2,082 1,686 71 700 4,539 1,879 6,418
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15. MATHEMATICAL RESERVES FOR LIFE INSURANCE OPERATIONS

The mathematical reserves for life insurance contracts at December 31, 2018 were certified by an independent actuary,
whose report states that the mathematical provisions are computed in a manner that conforms to the appropriate
actuarial standards of practice and meet adequately the Company’s liabilities arising from its entire life insurance

business cycle.

The movement in the mathematical provision during the year is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
Balance at 1 January 1,517 1,517
Additionat provision during the year {80) -
Balance at 31 December 1,437 1,517

16. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2018 2017

Insurance Operations:
Professional fees 209 315
CCHI fee 3 232
SAMA fee 12 220
Sundry creditors and stale cheques 13,882 6,044
Brokerage payable 1,289 3,747
Chairman and Directors’ remuneration 2,477 2,266
Board attendance and sitting fees 268 577
Others 18,138 3,495
36,278 17,496

17. EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

31 December

31 December

The following tables summarise the components of end of service benefits recognised in the statement of income,

accumulated surplus and amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial

position of insurance operations:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

Amount recognized in the statement of financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,785 3,849
Fair value of plan assets _ i
Net liability at end of the year 1,785 3,849
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

Benefit expense (recognized in profit or toss)

Current service cost 1,295 1,512
Commission rate cost 100 191
Benefit expense 1,395 1,703
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17. EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS (continued)

Movement in the present value of defined benefit
obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the
year

Current service cost

Commission rate cost

Actuarial (gain) on defined benefit plan
Benefits paid

Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the
year

17.1 Defined benefit obligation sensitivity analysis

Movement in ret liability recognised in bajance sheet
Net ltability at beginning of the year

Charge recognised in profit or toss

Actuarial (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income
Benefits paid

Net liability at end of the year

Principal actuarial assumption at 31 December 2018
Discount rate

Salary increase rate
Return on plan assetis

18. STATUTORY DEPOSIT

In accordance with Article 58 of the Implementing Regulations for Cooperative Insurance, the Company has
deposited an amount of SR 18,300 (31 December 2017: SAR 30,750) with Riyadh Bank. During 2016 statutory
deposit was increased from 10% to 15% of share capital in order to comply with SAMA letter no 371000070032
dated 30® March 2016.The Company has received no objection letter from SAMA dated on 19 July 2018 to reduce

the statutory deposit.
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31 December

31 December

2018 2017
3,849 2,945
1,295 1,512

100 191
(804) (361)

(2,655) (438)

1,785 3,849

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
3,849 2,945
1,395 1,703
(804) (361)
(2,655) (438)
1,785 3,849

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
4.30% 4.0%
4.30% 3.0%

Not applicable
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19.ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

19.1 Zakat base summary is as follows:

Shareholders’ capital

Accumulated deficit at beginning of year
Reduction of share capital

Provisions

Net profit / (loss) for the year, as adjusted for
Non - deductibie items

Property and equipment — net

Total

Zakat base for Saudi shareholders at 84.88%

Zakat at 2.5%

Zakat is payable at 2.5% of higher of the approximate zakat base and adjusted net income attributable to the Saudi

shareholders.

19.2 Income tax

The current year’s provision is based on the following:

Net (lossYincome for the year

Add: Inadmissibie expenses

Less : Admissible expenses
Adjustment of brought forward losses
Adjusted (loss)/ income

Adjusted income attributed to non-Saudi shareholders at

15.12%

Provision for income tax {20%)

Movements in zakat is as follows:

Balance at begining of the vear
Provision during the year and prior years
Payment during the year

Balance at end of the year

B

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
100,000 122,000
(37,318) (83317)
22,000 83,000
41,017 27,233
(100,429) (13.390)
(5,061) (8,490)
20,209 127,036
17,153 107,828
429 2,696

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

(157,957) (29,397

54,903 16,007

- 438

(103,054) (13,828)

- (2,091)

31

December 31 December
2018 2017
3,801 3,171
1,000 3,902
(2,696) (3,272}
2,105 3,801
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19. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (continued)
19.3 Provision for zakat and fax

Movements in the income tax is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
Balance at beginning of the vear 165 1,749
Provision for the prior years - 65
Payment during the year - (1,649)
Balance at end of the year 165 165
Zakat and income tax payable 2,270 3,966
Shareholdings
Foliowing is the shareholding structure of the Company as on:
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Shareholding subject to Zakat 84.88% 84.88%
Shareholding subject to Income Tax 15.12% 15.12%

19.3.1 Zakat and {ax assessment status

The Company has filed zakat and income tax retumns for the financial year 2017 with the Genera! Authority of Zakat

and Tax (the “GAZT”) and obtained the required certificate.

The GAZT issued assessment for the years 2006 - 2013 with an additional liability of SAR 8.5 million (without
penalty). The Company has received revised assessment with an additional liability of SAR 4.5 million (without
penalty). The Company has further objected the revised assessment orders before GAZT and GAZT has forwarded
the case to General secretariat of Tax Committees on 2 May 2019 and appeal is not yet heard. However, the Company

has booked a provision of 3.8 mitlion.
19.3.2 VAT registration
The Company has obtained VAT regisiration certificate as required by applicable law.

20. SHARE CAPITAL
31 December

31 December

2018 2017
Authorised:
10,000,000 (2017: 12,200,000) shares of SAR 10 each 106,000 122,000
Allotted, issued and fully paid
10,000,000 (2017: 12,200,000) shares of SAR 10 each 100,000 122,600

The Board of Directors recommended the extra ordinary general assembly to approve the capital reduction of SR 22
million. The Company after receiving approval from SAMA and CMA, called for a general assembly meeting and

ihe reduction of capifal of SR 22 million was approved by the general assembly on 05 June 2018.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the share capital of the Company was held by the following shareholders:

Percentage  No. of shares 2018  No. of shares 2017
The New India Assurance Co. Ltd 5.17% 517,072 630,839
Life Insurance Corporation of India 4.975% 497,560 607,024
LIC (International) BSC 4.975% 497,560 607,024
Local shareholders and general public 84.88% 8,487,800 10,355,123
160% 16,000,060 12,200,000
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21. OTHER UNDERWRITING EXPENSES

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
CCHI fees at 1% of gross health premium 218 1,945
Third Party Administrator (TPA) charges 2,856 5,436
SAMA fees at 0.5% of gross written premium 892 2,269
Medical, motor cards and others 5304 7,487
9,270 17,137

22, GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

Operating and administrative salaries and benefits 33,486 41,307
Rent 848 1,933
Repair and mainienance 750 491
Depreciation and amortization 4,040 1,391
Professional fees 3612 2,384
Travel expenses 359 227
Car maintenance - 15
Office supplies and printing and stationery 229 476
IT expenses 1,604 2,980
Penalties 17 10
Bad debts written off - 3,410
Sitting Fees to Board and Committees 1,523 4384
Tadawul fees 2 329
Directors travelling & other expenses 11 140
Other expenses 1,358 3,812
47,859 59,389

23. BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

Net loss for the year before Zakat (157,957) (32,680}
Weighted average number of shares

in issue throughout the year 10,800,000 10,000,000

Basic and diluted loss per share {15.7% (3.27)

Restated

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been computed by dividing the net income for the relevant periods by the
weighted average number of issued outstanding shares. The relevant averages are 10,000,000 shares for the year ended
31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: 10,000,000 shares).

The weighted average nurber of shares have been retrospectively adjusted for all prior periods to reflect the reduction
in share capital in line with the requirement of [AS 33 “Earnings per share”,
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company, and
companies of which they are principal owners and any other entities contrelled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by them. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Company’s management and
Board of Directors. Transactions with related parties are conducted on similar terms and conditions as compared with

external parties and on arm’s length basis. The following are the details of the major related party transactions during
the year and the related balances:

Related parties Naiure of
transactions Notes Amount of transactions Balances
2018 2017 2018 2017
The New India
Assurance Company
Limited -Reinsurance
(Shareholder) premium ceded 49 1,263 - -
-Reinsurance
commission
income 9 259 - -~
-Reinsurer’s share
of cutstanding
claims 8 3,087 - -
-Balance
receivable -~ -- 2,932 2,636
-Share
compensation
balance payable -- -- 5,932 5,932
Life Insurance -Share
Corporation of India compensation
{Shareholder) balance payable - - -- 5,709
-Share
cotripensation '
Other Shareholders balance payable 91 91
Alinma Makkah Fund
{Common Directors) -Investment - -~ -- 13,696
Directors and Executive
Committee -Remuneration S00 1,080 -
-Balance payable - - 2477 2,266
Directors and Executive -Meeting
Committee attendance fee 423 234 -
-Balance payable -- -~ 234 577

Key management personnel are persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Company, directly or indirectly and comprise top management executives including the Chief
Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
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+ RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

The following table shows the annual salaries, remuneration and allowances obtained by the Board members and top
5 executives for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017:

Top executives
including the

2018 BOD members CEQ and CFO
SR SR
Salaries and compensation - 3,263
Allowances - 1,142
Annual remuneration 900 -
End of service indemnities - -
Total 900 4,405

Top executives
including the CEOQ

2017 BOD members and CFO
. SR SR
Salaries and compensation - 3.205
Allowances - 1.141
Annual remuneration 1,080 -
End of service indemnities - -
Total 1,080 4,346
23. Surplus distribution to policyholder
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Opening surplus distribution payable as at January 1 6,346 --
Surplus paid to policy holders (6,346) -~

Closing surplus distribution payable as at December 31
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INSURANCE RISKS

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty of the amount
and timing of any resulting claim. The principal risk the Company faces under such contracts is that the actual claims
and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims,

severity of claims, actual benefits paid are greater than originally estimated and subsequent development of long-term
claims,

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts as a
more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by change in any subset of the portfolio, as well
as unexpected outcomes. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategy and guidelines as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

Significant portion of reinsurance business ceded is placed on a quota share basis with retention limits varying by
product lines. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions used

for ascertaining the undetlying policy benefits and are presented in the statement of financial position as reinsurance
assets.

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obfigations to its policyholders
and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet
its obligations assumed under such reinsurance arrangements.

Sensitivities

The analysis below is performed for reasonabiy possible movements in key assumptions such as the average loss ratio
with all other assumptions held constant showing the impact on Habilities and net loss.

December 31, 2018 Change in Impact on Impact on
assumptions liabilities net profit
Claim ratio +5% 7,992 7,992
5% (7.992) (7,992)
December 31, 2017 Change in Impact on Impact on
assumptions liabilities net loss
Claim ratio +5% 19,543 19,543
-5% {19,543) {19,543)

Reinsurance risk

Similar to other insurance companies, in order fo minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the
Company, in the normal course of business, enters into agreements with other parties for reinsurance purposes. Such
reinsurance arrangements provide for greater diversification of business, allow management to contro! exposure to
potential losses arising from large risks, and provide additional capacity for growth. A significant portion of the
reinsurance is affected under proportional treaties such as quota share with surplus and non-proportional treaties such
as excess of loss.

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities
or economic characteristics of the reinsurers.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders and as a result the
Company remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to mest
the obligations under the reinsuranice agreements.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include financial assets, financial liabifities,

reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual
policy statements associated with each item.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated by management are summarised below:

27.1 Operationatl risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes,
technology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internaily within the Company or external ty
at the Company’s service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as

those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management
behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.

The Company’s objective is to manage operationat risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its
reputation with achieving its investment objective of generating returns for investors. The ptimary responsibility for
the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This
responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:

- Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;

- Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- Documentatien of controls and procedures;

- Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified;

- Ethical and business standards; and

- Risk mitigation policies and procedures.

27.2 Protection and Saving

For protection and saving, the main risk is the mortality, morbidity (permanent or temporary disability) of the insured
and policyholder behavior risk,

Mortality risk
Actual policyholder death experience on life insurance policies is higher than expected.

Morbidity risk
Policyholder health-related claims are higher than expected.

Policyholder behavior risk

Policyholders’ behavior in discontinuing and reducing contributions or withdrawing benefits prior to the maturity of
contracts is worse than expected. Poor persistency rates may lead to fewer policies remaining on the books to defray
future fixed expenses and therefore reduce the future positive cash flows from the business written, potentially
affecting Company’s ability to recover deferred acquisition expenses.

This is managed through an effective and clearly defined underwriting strategy. There are various levels of
underwriting carried ouf, including declaration of good health, medical questionnaire, rteports from
specialists/consultants and comprehensive medical tests. The Company also conducts financial, lifestyle and
occupational underwriting to ascertain the degree of risk carried by the insured and to determine whether or not it
could be classified as a standard life.

For group protection and saving, the mortality risk is compounded due to the concentration of lives, for example
employees in the same workplace. The Company has a clearly defined underwriting strategy. There are vatious levels
of underwriting carried out, including declaration of good health, medical questionnaire, reports from
specialists/consultants and comprehensive medical tests. The Company also looks at the nature of activity carried out
by the group, group size, mix of lives by geographical regions, cultural background and manual/non-manual worker
split. _

The individual family and group protection and saving portfolio is protected through an efficient reinsurance
arrangement in accordance with Allianz Group standards. This protects the Company from adverse
mortality/morbidity experience. There is a maximum retention per life under the reinsurance arrangement which

protects the Company from single large losses. Multiple claims and concentrations of risk are also covered under the
arrangement.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continue)
27.3 General Insurance
Medical

The Company’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of type of risks and
level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors and geography, the
use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes account of current health conditions and family medical
history, regular view of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims handling procedures.
The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its
exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Company. The Company has reinsurance
cover to limit the losses for any individual claim.

Motor

For motor contracts, the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the replacement or repair of vehicles.
The Company only underwrites comprehensive polices for owner/drivers over 21 years of age.

The level of court awards for deaths and to injured parties and the replacement costs of motor vehicles are the key
factors that influence the level of claims. The Company also has appropriate risk management procedures to control
the cost of claims. The Company has reinsurance cover for such damage to limit the losses for any individual claim.

Properiy

For property insurance contracts the main risk is fire. The Company only underwrites policies for properties containing
fire detection equipment.

These contracts are underwritten by reference to the replacement value of the properties and contents insured. The cost
of rebuilding properties and obtaining replacement contents and the time taken to restart operations which leads to
business interruptions are the main factors that influence the level of claims. The Company has appropriate reinsurance
cover for such damage to limit losses for any individual claim. These are covered under proportional and non-
proportional treaties.

Marine

For marine insurance, the main risks are loss or damage to marine craft and accidents resulting in the total or partial
loss of cargoes.

The underwriting strategy for the marine class of business is to ensure that policies are well diversified in terms of

cargo, vessels and shipping routes covered. The Company has reinsurance cover to limit losses for any individual
claim.

Engineering

For engineering insurance, the main risks are loss or damage fo the construction/erection works caused by fire,
explosion, natural perils like floods, earthquakes, hailstorms, etc. Selection of risks and proper underwriting are the
criteria for this line of business. The Company has appropriate reinsurance cover for such risks to {imit losses for any
individual claim. These are covered under engineering proportional and non-proportional ireaties.

Public liability

For public liability insurance, the main risks are legal liabilities of the insured towards third party deaths, bodily injury
or property damage arising out of insured premises, business operations or projects handled by the insured.

This insurance policy is underwritten based on the turnover of the Company or the value of the contract, nature /
occupation of the premises, nature of contracts handled. The Company has appropriate reinsurance cover to limit the
losses for any individual claim.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the reporting date are
adequate, However, these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided
in the financial statements. The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions. It has not been

possible fo quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation
process.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinue)

27.4 Claims management risk

Claims management risk may arise within the Company in the event of inaccurate or incomplete case reserves and
claims settlements, poor service quality or excessive claims handling costs. These risks may damage the Company and
undermine its ability to win and retain business, or incur punitive damages. These risks can occur at any stage of the
claims life cycle. The Company’s claims teams are focused on delivering guatity, reliability and speed of service the
policyholders. Their aim is to adjust and process claims in a fair, efficient and timely manner, in accordance with the
policy’s terms and conditions, the regulatory environment, and the business’ broader interests. Prompt and accurate

case reserves are set for all known claims liabilities, including provisions for expenses, as soon as a reliable estimate
can be made of the claims liability,

Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date relates to valuation of outstanding
claims, whether reported or not, and includes expected claims settlement costs. The principal assumption underlying
the liability estimates is that the Company’s future claims development will follow a similar pattem: to past claims
development experience. This inciudes assumptions in respect of average claim costs, claim handling costs, claim
inflation factors and claim numbers for each accident year. Additional qualifative judgements are used to assess the
extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example: one—off occurrence; changes in market factors
such as public attitude to claiming: economic conditions: as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy
conditions and claims handling procedures. Judgement is further used to assess the extent to which external factors
such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the estimates. Considerable judgment by management is
required in the estimation of amounts due to policyholders arising from claims made under insurance contracts. Such
estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors invoiving varying and possibly significant
degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from management’s estimates resulting in future
changes in estimated liabilities. Qualitative judgments are used to assess the extent to which past trends may net apply
in the future, for example one-off occurrence, changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming and
economic conditions. Judgment is further used to assess the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions
and government legislation affect the estimates. '

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the statement of
financial position date and for the expected ultirate cost of claims incurred but not reporied (1IBNR) at the statement
of financial position date.

27.5 Process used to decide or assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in
neutral reasonable estimates of the most likely or expected outcorme. The nature of the business makes it very difficult
to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and the uliimate cost of notified claims. Each
notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due regard to claim circumstances, information
available from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regulariy
and are updated as and when new information is available,

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of sattling
claims already notified to the Company, in which case information about the ciaim event is available. The estimation
process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs.

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection techniques
such as Chain ladder method, Bornhuetter - Ferguson method and Expected Loss Ratio Method.

The main assumption underiying these techniques is thai a Company’s past claims development experience can be
used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims cests. As such, these methods extrapolate the
development of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim and claim numbers based on the observed
development of earlier years and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident
years, but can also be further analysed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types.
Large claims are usually separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or
separately projected in order to reflect their future development, In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made

+3
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regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in the historical
ciaims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement is used to

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continue)

Process used to decide on assumptions (Continue)

assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to reflect one-off occurrences, changes in external
or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims inflation,

judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy features and claims handling
procedures) in order to arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the likely outcome from the range
of possible outcomes, taking account of all the unceriainties involved.

The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions (unearned premium
reserve and premium deficiency reserve in result of liability adequacy test) would be sufficient to service the future
expected claims and expenses likely to occur on the unexpired policies as at the statement of financial position date.
The expected future liability is determined using estimates and assumptions based on the experience during the expired
period of the contracts and expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.

27.6 Reserving and uktimate reserves risk

Reserving and ultimate reserves risk occurs within the Company where established insurance liabilities are insufficient
through inaccurate forecasting, or where there is inadequate allowance for expenses and reinsurance bad debts in
provisions. To manage reserving and ultimate reserves risk, our actuarial team uses a range of recognized techniques
to project gross premiums written, monitor claims development patterns and stress-test ultimate insurance liability
balances.

The objective of the Company’s reserving policy is to produce aceurate and reliable estimates that are consistent over
time and across classes of business.

27.7 Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

To comply with the insurance capital requirements as set out in the Law on the Supervision of Cooperative Insurance
Companies (“Insurance Law”). The Company’s current paid up capital is in accordance with Article 3 of the Insurance
Law;

Te safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the level of risk.

In the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia solvency regulations and the minimum capital requirements are set and regulated by
the Saudi Arabian Menetary Agency (“SAMA™). Also refer note 2 to these financial statements.

27.8 Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factors affecting
all securities traded in the market. The Company is exposed to market risk with respect to its investments in quoted
securities held by it directly. The Company limits market risk by actively monitoring the key factors that affect stock
and the matket movements, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of the investee.

The Company is not significantly exposure to the market risk because Company do not have quoted security.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

27.9 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty may default on its contractual obligations resulting in financiat loss to
the Company. For all classes of financial assets held by the Company, the maximum exposure to credit risk to the
Company is the carrying value as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

10.2% (2017: 12.77%) of the Company’s receivabies are due from one broker as at December 31, 2018.
Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

Re-insurers’ share of insurance liabitities;

Amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;
Amounts due from insurance contract holders; and

Amounis due from insurance intermediaries.

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored, and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst counterparties.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. The credit worthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis
by reviewing their financial strength prior to finalization of any contract.

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it conducts regular
business, Management information reported to the Company includes details of provisions for impairment on
insurance receivables and subsequent write-offs. Where there exists significant exposure to individual policyholders,

or homogenous groups of policyholders, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out
by the Company,

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because most of the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of the
insurance receivables.

The Company seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to customers by setting credit limits for individual customers
and monitoring outstanding receivables.
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27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
27.9 Credit risk {continued)

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the financial position as at 31

December:
Notes 31 Pecember
2018 31 December 2017

Assets

Cash and cash equivaients 6 2,979 120,336
Investments 13 1,923 19,569
Premiums and reinsurance receivables, net 7 53,383 149,222
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims 8 44,958 86,484
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported 8 9,520 41,316
Reinsurers’ share of other reserves - 1,343
Other assefs _ 12 15,243 16,553
Due from related parties 24 2,932 2,636
Return on statutory deposit 2,023 1611
Statutory deposit 18 18,300 30,750
Total 151,261 469,820

27.10  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitrnents associated
with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may resuit from the inability to sell a financial asset quickly at an amount
close to its fair value. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring on regular basis that sufficient funds are available to
meet any future commitments as well as obtaining continued financial support from shareholders (if needed).
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

27.12 Special commission rate risk

Special commission rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in commission rates will affect future
profitability or the fair values of financial instruments.

The Company did not have any instruments which attracted any special commission so there no special
commission rate risk arises.

27.13 Geographical concentration of risk

All of the Company’s insurance risks related to insurance policies are written in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,
27.14 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecus market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The fair values of recognized financial instruments are not significantly different from the carrying values inciuded
in the financial statements,

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active market for the identical instrument (i.e., without modification or
adjustment);

Level 2: Quoted market prices in active market for similar assets and liabiiities or other valuation techniques for
which all significant inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

The table below presents the financial instruments at their fair vaiues as of 31 December 2018 based on the fair
value hierarchy:

31 December 2018 Level § Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments

- Insurance operations - - 1,923 1,923

- Shareholders’ operations = -~ - --

Total - -~ 1,923 1,923

31 December 2017 Level | Level 2 Levei 3 Total

Investments

- Insurance operations - - 15,619 15,619

- Shareholders’ operations 3,950 - - 3,950
3,950 - 15,619 19,569

Total
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

27.14 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

28

29

30

The unlisted securities amounting to SAR 1,923,000 (31 December 2017: SAR 15,619,014) are stated at cost in
the absence of active markets or other means of reliably measuring their fair value. For financial instruments that
are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

CREDIT QUALITY OF INVESTMENTS

31 December 31 December
Investments 2018 Rating 2017  Rating
Insurance Operations:
Available for sale
Equity 1,923  Unrated 1,923 Unrated
Investment in real estate fund - 13,696 Unrated
1,923 15,619
Shareholders’ Operations:
Statutory deposit — Riyad Bank 20,323 A- 32,361 A-
Available for sale
Sharia Compliant Fund -
Adeem Capital - 3950 Unrated
20,323 36,31

The ratings have been obtained from the external rating agencies.
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company has filed a legal suit for recovery of SR 2.8 million against a company on account of rent and
expenses on improvements, which the Company did on a rented property, However, the property could not be
delivered to the Company due to certain non-compiiance of legal requirements. The Company, based on internal
legal opinion, is of the view that the judgment will be in favor of the Company. Accordingly, SR 2.8 miltion
comprising SR 1.2 million on account of rent and SR 1.6 million being advances paid for initial cost to establish
the site for use of the Company’s operations, which were previously charged out have now been recorded under
prepayment and ofher assets

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Consistent with the Company’s internal reporting process, business segments have been approved by Management
in respect of the Company’s activities, assets and liabilities. Information disclosed in the note is based on current

reporting to the chief operating decision maker. Operating segments do not include shareholders’ operations of
the Company.

Segment assets do not include insurance operations’ cash and cash equivalents, receivables, prepaid expenses,
invesiments, advances and other receivables, due from shareholders’ operations and property and equipment.
Accordingly, they are included in unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities do not include reinsurers’ balances payable, unearned commission income, employees® end of
service benefits, accrued expenses and other liabilities. Accordingly, they are included in unailocated liabilities.
These unaliocated assets and liabilities are not reported to chief operating decision maker under the related
segments and are monitored on a centralized basis.
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